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The Oakham Historical   

Museum is one of the 

town’s oldest buildings. 

Although the exact date 

on which it was built is 

unknown, it is recorded    

in a land transfer on     

August 25, 1773. 

The building has a rich history 

of revolutionary  conspiracies, 

home of  the Fobes family, 

and as the town’s first Post 

Office.  

It now serves as a meeting 

place for the OHA and a mu-

seum for  everyone to enjoy. 

 Officers: 
         Jeffrey Young, President 
         Ken Housman Vice-President 
         Helen Bechan, Secretary  
         Kathryn Young, Treasurer 
         Linda Housman, Curator 

 Directors :   
         Wesley Dwelly 
          Eva Grimes 
          William Mucha 

 Work Meetings:      1st Wed, 7pm 
 Regular Meetings:  3rd Wed, 7pm 
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Upcoming Events  

May 21  
Annual 20-20 lottery 

fundraiser ends   
 
 

May 24, 1-4p 
Museum Opens 

for the 2015 season;  
open to the public on 

the 4th Sunday of 
each month through 

Oct. 25   
 
 

May 25 
Memorial  Day  

Program 
OHA coffee & donut 

table 
 
 

May 27, 7p  
Visitors from  

Oakham, England 
Talk at Center School 

 
 

August 29, 8a-3p 
Town-Wide  
Yard Sale 

 
 

October 4, 11a-5p 
Worcester  
Revolution  

of 1774 
A free daylong festival 

in 
Institute Park and 
nearby buildings, 

Worcester 
 
 
 

 

On May 27, John and Christine Nowell, residents of Oakham, England, will visit the little town of Oakham, 

Massachusetts.  They will be in Houston, Texas to attend their grandson’s college graduation and have 

accepted Ken and Linda Housman’s invitation to visit our Oakham. The Nowells’ visit has come about as a 

result of Ken and Linda’s trip to Europe last fall which included a prearranged visit to Oakham, England.  

The Housmans were warmly welcomed and graciously escorted around the historic town during their two 

day stay.   Now, we have the chance to offer the same warm hospitality.   

Two special events have been planned to celebrate the Nowells’ visit, sponsored by the OHA. 

The first event will take place on Wednesday, May 27 at the Oakham Center School at 1:30pm.  The prin-

cipal, Ms. Worthington, is delighted to have Mr. Nowell speak to both fifth grade classes.   

The second event will be held later that same evening at the school at 7:00pm.  Using a power point 

presentation, Mr. Nowell will take us on a tour of his town.  Some landmarks may include the 12th-

century Great Hall, once a part of Oakham Castle,  and its renowned collection of horseshoes , the Grain-

ery Brewery which has revived the award-winning Rutland Bitter, and the historic open-air markets still 

held weekly under the medieval Buttercross.  The public is cordially invited to enjoy this presentation. 

Oakham, U.K. is the county seat in Rutland County with a population of around 10,000, approximately the 

same population as Leicester, Massachusetts.  Interestingly, in England, the city of Leicester in Leicester-

shire County borders Rutland County.   

Mr. Nowell is a Councilor (selectman) representing Oakham’s North East Ward, one of the town’s four 

wards. John and his wife, Christine, have co-authored more than a dozen photographic books, specializ-

ing in aerial views of the local countryside and histories of the area.  In 1997 they launched a book pub-

lishing business.  John served 19 years in the Royal Air Force (RAF) and was a helicopter pilot instructor in 

both service and civilian life.  Since 1987, he has been a pilot in the Air Ambulance Service and is still on 

call  to fly to local accident scenes.  Christine was born into an RAF family and met her future husband 

while stationed in Singapore.   Before marrying, she, too, spent time in the skies, flying with the former 

British European Airways.  The Norwell family spent 25 years in the Middle East, and has lived in England, 

California, and Florida.  They have six children and three grandsons. 

Lǘ ǇǊƻƳƛǎŜǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ŀƴ ŜƴǘŜǊǘŀƛƴƛƴƎ ŜǾŜƴƛƴƎΦ                                                                                                                
²Ŝ ƘƻǇŜ ȅƻǳ ǿƛƭƭ Ƨƻƛƴ ǳǎ ƛƴ ƎƛǾƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ bƻǿŜƭƭǎ ŀ ǿŀǊƳ ǿŜƭŎƻƳŜΦ  

 
Linda & Ken with  

John Nowell 
(center) 

 in front of the 
Great Hall , once 

a part of Oak-
ham Castle. 

Charles 
Howarth, 

Councilor & 
historian, 

leading the 
tour inside 

the Great Hall; 
Ken & John 

(rear) 

{ǇŜŎƛŀƭ ±ƛǎƛǘƻǊǎ !ǊǊƛǾƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ hŀƪƘŀƳΣ 9ƴƎƭŀƴŘ 



During the King Philip war (1675-1676) the present 
town of Oakham was frontier territory occupied by 
neither colonists nor Native Americans. Nipmuc 
strongholds were located along the Ware River in 
what are now the towns of Barre and New Braintree 
and another seasonal camp was located near Mount 
Wachusett. The total Indian population in all of 
southern New England at this time was about 20,000 
while the English population in the Massachusetts 
Bay Colony was around 17,000. The closest colonial 
settlements to Oakham were Lancaster (about 50 
families), Worcester (Quinsigamond) the smallest 
settlement and Brookfield 
(Quaboag Plantation) with a 
population of less than 100 
people. All three of these fron-
tier settlements would be aban-
doned and most of the proper-
ty destroyed by Indians before 
the war ended. When all hope 
of an Indian victory was aban-
doned, many of the Native 
Americans fled their homelands and most of those 
that remained were forced to settle in closely 
watched “praying villages”.  

In1686 five Nashaway Indians, from the Pennacook, 
Natick and Wamisick villages sold a 12 mile square 
section of land called Naquag to five land speculators 
from Lancaster. This territory would become the 
towns of Rutland, Oakham, Barre, Hubbardston and 
parts of Princeton and Paxton. This wilderness area, 
however, was still being used as temporary 
campsites by friendly Indians; some  who  were still 
camping on Muddy Pond as late as the 1750’s. 

In 1704 during the Queen Anne’s War, Mohawk 
and Indian tribes from Canada who were fighting 
with the French, raided many of the new English 
settlements in the area. Among the towns that 
were attacked were Lancaster, Deerfield and 
Brookfield. This did not seem to deter new settle-
ments in Naquag, however. The new proprietors 
continued to sell parcels of the land to those who 
wished to risk their lives for a new beginning. Aa-
ron and Agnes Crawford sailed from Ireland to 
Boston in 1713 but in 1719 packed up again and 
moved to a six mile square section of Naquag that 

would become the township of Rutland. Also ar-
riving at the same time with the Crawfords were 
the Bothwells, the Bells, the Harpers, the Deans, 
the McMains and the McFarlands. These families 
came from Scotland and Northern Ireland and 
were of the Presbyterian faith. After some strong 
differences with the Congregational minister, Rev. 
Thomas Frink, they decided to build their own 
church on the corner of Worcester Road and 
Spencer Road (now Pleasantdale Road) that be-
came known as the Dublin section of Rutland. 

Wolves were a constant threat to livestock and 
their owners and Indian raids were still plaguing 
the new settlements. This was no place for city 
slickers. In 1723 Reverend Joseph Willard, and Jo-
seph and Samuel Stevens were killed by Indians 
and two Stevens’ brothers were captured. The fol-
lowing year three more men were killed during an 
Indian raid on Rutland. Indian raids in Massachu-
setts would continue well into Revolutionary War 
times, but this did not seem to slow the colonial 
pioneers. They continued to move further away 
from the safe havens. As early as 1739, Robert 
McMains purchased land in the Rutland West 
Wing (Oakham) miles from any other homes. In 
1742 John and Thomas McIntire bought land near 
East Hill Road but never lived there. That same 
year, William Harper and Alexander Crawford also 
purchased property in Rutland West Wing. 

History has a habit of reporting first settlers as the 
men who purchased the land and not necessarily 
the people who lived there first. There were many 
speculators who owned lots in Oakham but never 
spent a night there so there are still some ques-
tions as to who the “original” settlers were. Sever-
al sources mention the first ten settlers: William 
Harper, George Harper, Alexander McFarland, 
James Bell, Robert McMains, William Banks, Pat-
rick Green, James Craige Sr., Alexander Bothwell 
and Alexander Crawford, who actually were living 
in Oakham between 1746 and 1750.  

My contention is that the Wild West Wing was not 
settled by 10 men but by a group of families that 
helped each other turn a wilderness area into a 
thriving community.     (to be continued in next newsletter) 

{Ƴŀƭƭ ¢ƻǿƴΣ [ŀǊƎŜ IƛǎǘƻǊȅ τ {ŜǧƭŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ hŀƪƘŀƳΣ  tŀǊǘ м 
By Lee Dougan   



 

 
 OAKHAM NEWS FROM THE PAST 

CŜōǊǳŀǊȅ фΣ мутуΥ  The Oakham stage came in Monday 

morning with a rush, the horses on a run and the pas-

sengers alighting in snow-banks in a manner decidedly 

more speedy than graceful.  Just as the stage was driv-

ing into the village [North Brookfield] one of the 

whiffletrees became detached and striking the horses’ 

heels frightened him so that he, and the other two 

along with him, started to run, and took the coach 

through the village at a very lively pace, the passen-

gers jumping out one by one as they came to an in-

viting looking snow drift.  Mr. Gleason the driver, 

pluckily stuck to his team until the dash-board broke 

off and let him onto the pole between the horses, 

where he still stood by the ship until forced to surren-

der by the vigorous kicking of the animals.  The team 

was stopped near Morris Splaine’s on the East 

Brookfield road.  No damage was done except the loss 

of the foot-board to the coach and sundry bruises to 

Mr. Gleason.  

                          North Brookfield Journal 
 MYSTERY PHOTO:  Do you recognize anyone?  Could it be 

a college graduation? There are only 4 women. The two 

men in the middle—one seated, one standing behind—

look older than the other men—could they be professors? 

{ŜǇǘŜƳōŜǊ нмΣ мууоΥ  Winnie Ayres, youngest son of 

Hon. M. O. Ayres, has passed a successful examina-

tion and entered the Agricultural College at Amherst.   

Over four hundred people partook of the Farmer’s 

Club dinner last Tuesday, and more tickets could have 

been sold had accommodations been sufficient. 

                        North Brookfield Journal 

 

{ŜǧƭŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ hŀƪƘŀƳΣ 

tŀǊǘ нΥ aƻǊŜ !ōƻǳǘ ¢ƘŜ 

CŀƳƛƭƛŜǎΣ will be printed 

in the June newsletter. 



   

IƛǎǘƻǊƛŎ 9ƭƳ ¢ǊŜŜ [ƛǾŜǎ hƴ 

 In 2010, the majestic  elm tree that stood between the Town Hall and the Congregational Church for 150 years 
had to come down, a victim of Dutch elm disease.  For many years, through many seasons, it provided shade on Oak-
ham’s hot summer days and  was the starting point or “safe” spot for many school children’s games during the many 
decades when the Oakham Center School occupied two rooms on the first floor of the Town Hall.  Even though this 
stately tree no longer stands, its wood has been given new life as mementos of Oakham’s history. 

 Fortunately, Oakham has two master craftsmen who have created  impressive historical items from this tough 
old tree’s  remains.  The first item, created by OHA member Jim Willard in 2013, was a handsome bench which he do-

nated to the town and sits in the Town Hall lobby.  Jim also made a second 
bench which he donated to the Oakham Historical Museum where it invites 
visitors to take a seat on history . 

 The second item has been created recently by  another  talented 
craftsman.  Peter Cross, a local artisan and OHA member, has designed and 
meticulously handcrafted each clock from the rough-cut boards of the old elm 
tree.  The clocks are the newest addition to the Museum’s gift shop.  The clock 
is 9” high with an oval base measuring 3½” x 4½”, uses one AA battery, and 
weighs about one pound. The oval “pendulum” swivels to show a tree sketch 
on one side and an inscription “Village Center Elm Tree, Oakham, Massachu-
setts, 1860-2010” on the other side.  Each clock comes with a felted bottom, a 
battery and the elm tree story.  The price is $30.  To own this piece of Oakham 
history, please refer to the enclosed order form. 

************************************************************************************************ 

 

 During the height of the Civil War,  Reverend Francis Peloubet planted several trees in the center of Oakham. One elm tree, 

which was placed on what was then the Oakham Town Common across from the Congregational Church, stood watch over the 

town for 150 years, in both good times and bad. 

  It welcomed home the veterans from the Civil War and served as the beacon for all 

returning veterans right into the 21st century. It was there for the building of Memorial Hall 

and was there when the bell rang to start the school year there in 1875. It also witnessed 

the last graduation at the Oakham Center School in 1967.  In its early years it looked up at 

the Liberty Pole across the street and later watched it being torn down. It saw the Parkview 

Inn in its glory years but also watched it burn to the ground. It was there for hundreds of 

band concerts, parades, weddings and funerals. It was there when the corner stone for the 

Fobes Memorial Library was put in place and was there a hundred years later when the 

corner stone was removed during its 100th year celebration. This stately elm overlooked 

baseball games on Tomlinson Field and watched the construction of Wright Memorial Field. 

This magnificent tree withstood the 70-mile an hour winds in December of 1934 that top-

pled the church steeple and the hurricane of 1938 that did even more damage to the 

church, but the elm tree survived.   

 After 150 years of severe New England weather, it became one of the last remaining elm trees in central Massachusetts to 

succumb to Dutch elm disease. Although this tree is no longer on watch, its remains can live on for those fortunate enough to own 

one of these timeless (pun intended) mementos of Oakham’s history.  

¢ƘŜ {ǘƻǊȅ ƻŦ hŀƪƘŀƳΩǎ IƛǎǘƻǊƛŎ 9ƭƳ ¢ǊŜŜ 

                                            CŜŀǘǳǊŜŘ !ǊǝŦŀŎǘ τThis three-piece Mulberry ironstone tea 
set was handed down through several generations of the  
Jonathan Bullard family.  In the 1950s, the tea set was given 
to Leone Boyd Daniels by Grace Wilbur who had no heirs and 
was the last of Anna Bullard Hagar’s direct descendants.    
Leone donated it to the Historical Association.  She was a  
direct descendant (sixth generation) of Jonathan Bullard and 
was born on his homestead in 1896. 


